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Accountants & Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of North Providence, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
North Providence, Rhode Island as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise
the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Town of North Providence, Rhode Island's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of North Providence, Rhode Island as of June
30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the

year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 31, 2008 on our consideration of the Town of North Providence, Rhode Island’s internal control
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Boston
Newton

‘aMm , Two Charles Street, Providence, Rl 02904 T401421.2710 F401.2745230 www.thebravergroup.com Providence



The Management's Discussion and Analysis, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund — Budgetary Basis, Schoo! Unrestricted Fund —
Budgetary Basis, and the Schedule of Funding Progress for Pension Plans on pages 3 through 10, pages
56 through 59, and page 60, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied .certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of North Providence, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements. The
Combining Fund Financial Statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements of the Town of North Providence, Rhode lIsland. The
Combining Fund Financial Statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit

of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Yo e

Providence, Rhode Island
December 31, 2008



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

As management of the Town of North Providence, we offer readers of the Town of North Providence’s financial

Statements this narrative overview and analysis of financial activities of the Town of North Providence for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008.

Financial Highlights

¢ On the Government-Wide Statements, the liabilities of the Town of North Providence exceeded its assets at
the close of the most recent fiscal year by $1,099,584 (net assets).

e The unrestricted net assets of the governmental activities at June 30, 2008 totaled ($14,164,732).

¢ The independent auditor’s report for year-ended June 30, 2007 expressed an adverse opinion on the Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities of the Governmental Activities in the Government-wide Statements. The
adverse opinion was the result of the Town’s failure to comply with the governmental accounting standards
regarding the reporting of infrastructure assets. For fiscal year 2008, the Town made compliance with
governmental accounting standards one of its highest priorities. This goal was accomplished, and the Town of
North Providence now meets the high standards and requirements that are set for municipalities. _

e The June 30, 2007 net assets were restated to reflect the past due implementation of GASB Statement #34
relating to infrastructure assets and overall accounting for capital assets of governmental activities (See Note
18).

e As of year-end June 30, 2008 the Town’s General Fund had a deficit unreserved fund balance of ($6,102,927).

o As of June 30, 2008 the School Unrestricted Fund has an unreserved fund balance of $412,615 which included
a transfer from the Town’s General Fund of $300,000 in fiscal 2008 in addition to the original amount
appropriated to the School Department.

e The Town has one Business-Type Fund, the School Cafeteria Fund. At June 30, 2008 this fund had

unrestricted net asset deficiency of ($44,752). The fund incurred a decrease in net assets (net loss) of
($94,966) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This management discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction of the Town of North
Providence’s basic financial statements. The Town of North Providence’s basic financial statements are
comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and

3) notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements. '

The Town of North Providence’s basic financial statements and other supplementary financial information
provide information about all the Governments’ activities. They provide both a short-term and a long-term
view of the Town’s financial health as well as information about activities for which the Town acts solely as
a trustee for the benefit of those outside of the Town’s government.



Government-wide financial statements

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of
North Providence’s finances, in a manner which is similar to a private-sector business. They are presented

on the accrual base of accounting where revenues and expenditures are recognized on the date they occurred
rather than on the date they were collected or paid.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Town of North Providence’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decrease in net

assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the town of North Providence is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Government’s net assets changed during
the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this

statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes
and earned but unused compensated absences).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of North Providence
which are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The Town’s governmental activities include general government and administration, public
safety, development services, cultural and recreational services.

The government-wide financial statements areb reported on pages 11 through 12.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of North Providence, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements.  All the funds of the Town of North Providence can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower that that of the government-wide financial statements,
it 1s useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund

balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.



The Town of North Providence maintains governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund and school special revenue unrestricted fund, which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental funds statements are presented on pages 13 through 16.

Proprietary Funds

The Town of North Providence’s proprietary funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town of North Providence has
only one proprietary fund, this being an enterprise fund, the North Providence School Cafeteria Fund. This

fund operates as a federally mandated school food service system for low income families on a for profit
basis.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The North Providence School Cafeteria fund, which is not a major fund, is presented in the
proprietary funds.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 17 through 19.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town of North Providence’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on pages 20 through 21.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements are presented on pages 22 through 55.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain .
supplementary information pertinent to the Town of North Providence’s operations.

Required Supplementary information is presented on pages 56 through 60.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds (as applicable) are presented on pages 61 through 70.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the Town of North Providence, liabilities exceeded assets by $1,099,584 as of June 30, 2008.

The largest portion of the Town of North Providence’s net assets consists of its investments in capital assets
such as land, buildings and improvements, motor vehicles, furniture and equipment and infrastructure, less
any debt used to acquire these assets which is still outstanding. The Town of North Providence uses these
capital assets to provide services to its citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Town of North Providence’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to pay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves are highly unlikely to be used to liquidate these liabilities.

TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND
NET ASSETS

June 30, 2008 and 2007 (in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Restated Restated
Current and Other Assets § 11,052 $ 15,795 $ 242 $138 $11,294 §$ 15933
Capital Assets 46,502 44 929 0 0 - 46,502 44 929
Total Assets 57,554 60,724 242 138 57,796 60,862
Long-Term Liabilities 48,174 49,793 0 0 48,174 49793
Other Liabilities 10,435 12,606 287 38 10,722 12,694
Total Liabilities 58,609 62,399 287 88 58,896 62,487
Net Assets:
Invested in capital asssts,
net of related debt 13,110 8,734 0 0 13,110 8,734
Unrestricted (14,165) (10,409) (45) 50 (14,210) (10,359)

Total Net Assets  ($ 1,055)  ($1,675)  ($45) $ 50  ($1,100) ($ 1,625)

There are no external restrictions on the Town of North Providence’s net assets.

As of June 30, 2008 the Town of North Providence reports negative (deficit) balances in all three categories

of net assets, government as a whole, as well as separately for the governmental activities and business-type
activities in the Government-wide statements.



Analysis of the Town of North Providence’s Operation

The following analysis provides a summary of the Town of North Providence’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2008.

TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2008 and 2007 (in 000’s)

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 3751 % 3,622 $ 512 $ 550 $ 4,263 $ 4,172

Operating Grants and Contributions 18,154 17,133 453 404 18,607 17,537

Capital Grants and Contributions 882 2,220 882 2,220
General Revenues:

Property taxes 52,413 50,683 52,413 50,683

Motor vehicle phase-out taxes 4,979 5,052 4,979 5,052

Telephone and State PILOT 798 849 798 849

Grants and aid not restricted for a _

specific program 4,749 5,213 4,749 5,213
Unrestricted investment earnings 189 99 1 189 100
Total Revenues 85,915 84,871 965 955 86,880 85,826

Expenses:

Legislative, judicial, and administrative 11,418 11,852 11,418 11,852

Department of Finance 782 800 782 800

Public Safety 18,974 14,493 18,974 14,493

Public Services/works 4,995 4,835 4,995 4,835

Grants and contributions 1,284 1,240 1,284 1,240

Education 46,261 45,712 _ 46,261 45,712

Interest on long-term debt 1,581 1,608 : 1,581 1,608

School Cafeteria 1,060 1,048 1,060 1,048
- Total Expenses 85,295 80,540 1,060 1,048 86,355 81,588
Increase (decrease) in net assets 620 4,331 (95) (93) 525 4,238
Net assets beginning of year (1,675) 5,507 50 143 (1,625) 5,850
Restatement (See Note 1‘8) (11,513) (11,513)
Net assets (deficit Jend of year (5 1,055) (3 1,675) ($ 45) 3 50 ($1,100) ($1,625)




Financial Analysis of the Town of North Providence’s Funds

As noted carlier, the Town of North Providence uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the Town of North Providence’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the Town of North Providence’s financing requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund

balance may serve as a useful measure of the Town’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
tiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of North Providence’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances (fund deficit) of ($1,621,481). Unreserved fund balance deficit amounted to
(82,147,524) with reserved fund balance of $§526,043 for prepaid expenses and professional development.

The general fund is the operating fund of the Town of North Providence. At the end of the current fiscal
year the Town of North Providence ended with a decrease in fund balance of ($2,932,180). In addition, the

cumulative fund deficit of the General Fund was ($5,634,727) at June 30, 2008 while the unreserved deficit
was ($6,102,927). . ‘

Proprietary Funds

The Town of North Providence’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as
presented in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets
(cumulative deficit) of the respective proprietary funds are ($44,752).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the actual revenues were due to over budgeted line items and
State reducing the Town’s state aid. The differences between the original budget and actual expenses were

due to sewer claims from prior year 2007, fire department personnel call back cost and an unfavorable
healthcare costs.

Capital Assets and Debt and Administration

Capital .Assets

The Town of North Providence’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities amounts to $46,501,883 net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2008. Included are land, land
improvements, building and improvements, vehicles, equipment, furniture and fixtures, and infrastructure.



Capital Assets and Debt and Administration (Continued)

During fiscal year 2008, numerous projects were completed by the Town of North Providence, some of
which are as follows: ,

e A new Department of Public Safety complex was constructed, abutting the North Providence
Police/Fire complex. For the convenience of the taxpayers, the Building Inspections, Zoning,
Planning and Fire Department offices are now housed in one centralized location, with the
Police Department offices located next door.

e The Town’s Public Works building was renovated and modernized into a state of the art
facility. Located within the building is not only the Department of Public Works, but also the
new Division of Automotive Repair for all Town vehicles. A new salt shed was also erected
at this location. ’

e Renovations also took place within the North Providence Town Hall, the North Providence
Police Department and all the individual Town’s fire stations.

Additional information on the Town of North Providence’s capital assets is located in Note 6 pages 36-37
of this report.

Town of North Providence’s Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation) in 000’s

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
(As Restated ). - (As restated)
Land $ 15,498 $ 15,297 $ 15,498 $ 15,297
Buildings and improvements 25,686 24,459 25,686 24 459
Equipment, furn. & fixtures 770 597 770 597
Vehicles ' 1,128 1,070 ' 1,128 1,070
Infrastructure 1,335 1,433 1,335 1,433
Land improvements 2,085 2,073 2,085 2073
Total $46,502 _ $44929 § -O- $ -0 $ 46,502 $ 44,829

Long Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of North Providence had a total bonded debt of $32,938,950.
Of this amount, 100% comprises bonded debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Town of North Providence, Rhode Island’s
Outstanding Debt Obligations

(in 000’s)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General Obligation Bonds  $32,939 $35,639 $0 $0 $32,939 $35,639
Lease Purchase Obligations 453 556 0 0 453 556
Total obligations $33,392 $36.195 $0 $0 $33.392 $36.195



Long Term Debt (Continued)

Short-term obligations consisted of a Tax Anticipation Note Obligation at June 30, 2008. The balance
outstanding on the note obligation was $2,500,000.

State statutes [imit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may have outstanding to 3%
of the fair value of all taxable Town of North Providence property on the general obligation debt that a
municipality can issue. The Town of North Providence’s limit is $78,209,277 at year-end. The Town of
North Providence’s outstanding general obligation debt is $32,938,950 at year-end, which is $45,270,327
under the State imposed limitation. The increase in the Town of North Providence’s limit over the prior year
was due to a state mandated full revaluation. Due to the high housing market the total net assessed value of
the Town of North Providence doubled.

The Town of North Providence’s bonds are insured and hold a Baa3 credit rating from Moody’s and a BBB+
from Standard & Poor’s.

The Town of North Providence issued short term tax anticipation notes in the amount of $2,300,000 on
September 4, 2008 which matures on August 27, 2009 with an interest rate of 3.40%. The proceeds were

deposited into the General Fund’s cash account.

Additional information of the Town of North Providence’s debt administration can be found in footnote 10
on pages 39 through 41 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The Town of North Providence has budgeted $81,473,809 for fiscal 2009, an increase of
$710,636 over fiscal 2008. $44,439,660 or 55% is budgeted for educational purposes and
$37,034,149 or 45% is budgeted for other purposes.

e State aid to education is budgeted at $13,382,872, an increase of $83,110 over fiscal 2008. This
represents 30% of the education budget.

e The Town of North Providence has a five tier tax base which was revised in fiscal year 2008.
This base is comprised of the following: Residential Real Estate $16.75; Commercial Real Estate
$22.70; Tangible Property $60.85 and Motor Vehicle $41.95.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens a general overview of the Town of North
Providence’s finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning this report or if additional
financial information is needed, please contact Acting Finance Director, Maria G. Vallee, 2000 Smith Street,
North Providence, Rhode Island 02911.

10



TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




EXHIBIT A-1
TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,268,975 '3 173,760 $ 5,442,735
Accounts receivable, net 3,876,039 3,876,039
Internal balances (35,471) 35,471 -
Due from federal and state governments 1,474,900 32,627 1,507,527
Prepaids 468,200 468,200
Total Current Assets 11,052,643 241,858 11,294,501
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated 15,498,250 15,498,250
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 31,003,633 31,003,633
Total Noncurrent Assets 46,501,883 - 46,501,883
TOTAL ASSETS 57,554,526 241,858 57,796,384
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,558,715 286,610 3,845,325
Tax anticipation note payable 2,500,000 2,500,000
Accrued liabilities 3,999,904 3,999,904
Unearned revenue 376,795 376,795
Current portion of compensated absences 1,500,000 1,500,000
Current portion of IBNR claims 378,000 378,000
Current portion of bonds and notes 2,992,954 2,992,954
Total Current Liabilities 15,306,368 286,610 15,592,978
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences 9,336,438 9,336,438
Net pension obligation 3,567,523 3,567,523
Bond and note obligations, net 30,399,028 30,399,028
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 43,302,990 - 43,302,990
TOTAL LIABILITIES 58,609,358 286,610 58,895,968
NET ASSETS: .
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 13,108,900 - 13,109,800
Unrestricted (14,164,732) (44,752) (14,209,484)
TOTAL NET ASSETS 3 (1,054,832) $ (44,752) $ (1,099,584)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

11
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) to the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2)

EXHIBIT B-3

Year Ended June 30, 2008
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2): $ (3,505414)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period. 1,572,940
Governmental funds report the issuance of debt obligations as other financing sources whereas the
issuance of new debt would have no effect on the net assets. (139,768)
Governmental funds report principal repayments on debt obligations as an expenditure.
However, the repayment of principal has no effect on the net assets. 2,942,736
Governmental funds do not report estimated accrued IBNR claims as a liability in the
Fund Statements if they are not going o be paid with current available resources. These liabilities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as long-term debt. This adjustment
reflects the decrease in the estimate from the amount reported at June 30, 2008 247,000
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in governmental funds. Deferred tax and other revenue increased from fiscal 2007. 548,642
Allowance for doubtful accounts on tax & other receivables is not reported in the governmenta! fund
statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The change in the allowance
is included in the fund balance sheet as a contra to both receivables and deferred revenue.
The decrease in the allowance provision is recorded against revenue in the statement of activities. 346,475
Accrued interest on debt obligations is not recorded in the governmental funds as it will not be paid
with current measurable and available resources. The change in accrued interest is reported in the
government-wide statement of activities. This is the decrease in the accrual for the year ended
June 30, 2008 versus June 30, 2007. 38,900
Net pension obligation is a long-term liability reported in the government-wide financial statements
but not reported in the fund statements as it is not expected to be paid with current measurable and
available resources. Accordingly, the increase in the pension obligation is reported as an expenditure
in the government-wide statement of activities. The net pension obligation increased in fiscal 2008. (614,033)
Increase in compensated absences. The governmental fund reflects this activity when it will be paid
with measurable and available resources. The change from prior year balances is reflected in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets. (816,919)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2) 3 620,559

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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HIBIT C-1

T T NCE RHOL N,

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

School Cafeteria School Cafeteria
(current year) {prior year)
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 173,760 $ 119,080
Due from other funds 35,471 -
Due from federal and state governments 32,627 19,126
Total Current Assets 241,858 138,216
TOTAL ASSETS 241,858 138,216
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 286,610 : 88,002
Total Current Liabilities 286,610 88,002
TOTAL LIABILITIES 286,610 88,002
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted (44,752) 50,214
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ - (44,752) $ 50,214

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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WN OF NORTH PROVI ISLAN,

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT G2

Enterprise Funds

School Cafeteria School Cafeteria
(current year) (prior year)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for usage and service 3 511,512 $ 549,721
Total Operating Revenues 511,512 549,721
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cafeteria management and operations 1,059,941 1,048,422
Depreciation and amortization - -
Total Operating Expenses 1,059,941 1,048,422
OPERATING LOSS (548,429) (498,701)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income 178 1,252
State and federal grants 453,285 404,275
Net Nonoperating Revenues 453,463 405,527
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (94,966) (93,174)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 50,214 143,388
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $ (44,752) 3 50,214

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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XHIBIT
Wi N H PROVIDE| HOQDE |

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Enterprise
Fund
School Cafeteria

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers 3 511,512
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services and other operating payments (861,333)
Net cash provided (used ) by operating activities (349,821)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in amounts due from other funds (35,471)
Nonoperating grants received 439,784
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 404,313

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Investment income 178
Net cash provided by investing activities 178

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 54,670
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 119,090
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ ‘ 173,760

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used for operating activities:

Operating loss $ (548,429)

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable : 198,608
Net cash used for operating activities 3 (349,821)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2008

EXHIBITD-1

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to State of Rhode Island

Deposits held in custody for others
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

Police
Pension Agency
Trust Fund Funds
$ 3,305,526 3 497 666
17,217 666
83,984
20,607,176 497 666
24,019
473,647
- 497 666
$ 20,607,176 3 -

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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EXHIBIT D-2

TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Police
Pension
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS:
Contributions - employer 3 850,006
Contributions - plan members 310,683
Investment income (loss) - includes realized and unrealized gains and losses (1,134,742)
TOTAL ADDITIONS 25,947
DEDUCTIONS: v
Benefits paid 1,376,407
Investment expense 190,342
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 1,566,749
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS » (1,540,802)
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ' 22,147,978
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 20,607,176

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
21




TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Private-sector standards of
accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The

accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in
subsequent subsections of this Note.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Reporting Entity

The Town of North Providence was incorporated in 1765. The Town operates under a Council/Mayor
form of government, with a seven member Town Council headed by a Council President.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 39. Under GASB Statement No. 39,
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. Component
units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test1—  The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential
component unit and is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or is in
a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential component unit;

Test2—~  The potential component is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or

Test3—  The financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential component unit
were not included.

The following entities were considered for classification as component units for fiscal year 2008.

« North Providence School Department

Although these entities meet certain criteria of the tests listed above, neither entity is deemed to have
a separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the financial data for the North Providence School
Department has been included in the Governmental Funds within the Town's financial statements. There are

no component units included in the financial statements of the Town of North Providence as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2008.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities report information about the reporting
government as a whaole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Major individual governmental
funds and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. A fund is
considered a major fund if it is the primary operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

(a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual

governmental or enterprise fund are at ieast 10 percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type,
and

(b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual

governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total

for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a major fund.

It is used to account for all activities except those iegally or administratively required to be accounted for in
other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or items.

Permanent Funds

The Permanent Funds account for assets held by the Town pursuant to trust agreements. The
principal portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the objectives
of the fund. The Town does not currently maintain any Permanent Funds.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on
net income measurement similar to the private sector. The Proprietary Funds include both Enterprise and
Internal Service Funds. The Town currently has one Enterprise Fund and no Internal Service Funds.

Fiduciary Funds {Not included in government wide statements)

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. The
reporting entity includes seven agency funds at June 30, 2008. Since agency funds are
custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do not involve the measurement of
results of operations. The agency funds are as follows:

- Unclaimed Estates - Seized Property - Low Cost Spay/Neuter
- Animal Care Donations - Realty Tax Transfer - Food Pantry
- Student Activities Fund (represents combination of approximately 32 funds) -

Private-purpose Trust Funds

Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for
use by parties outside of the Town, and cannot be used at the Town’s discretion or to support

the Town's general operations. The reporting entity currently does not have any funds that
meet the definition of a private-purpose trust fund.

Pension Trust Funds

The Town of North Providence currently maintains one Pension Trust Fund to
account for the activity of the Town administered Police Pension Plan.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund

Major:
General Fund:

Special Revenue Fund:
School Unrestricted Fund

Capital Project Fund:
$3.5M Capital Project Fund

Proprietary Funds:

School Cafeteria

Non-Major: -

Special Revenue Funds:

Brief Description

See above for description

This fund is used to report all financial transactions
of the North Providence School Department, which
are not legally required to be accounted for
separately.

This fund is used to account for $3.5 million in bond
proceeds received in fiscal 2007 to be used for
various capital acquisitions and improvement
projects. This fund met the definition of a major
fund in 2007 however it does not meet the
definition in 2008 but management has elected to
present it as a major fund for comparative
purposes.

Accounts for the operations of the school breakfast
and lunch program of the North Providence School
Department. This fund did not meet the definition
for classification as a major fund. However,
management has elected to present the fund as
a major fund.

Bullet Proof Vests, Byrne Grant, Child Pass Safety
Grant, Community Development Block Grant, Cops
that Care, Dare Great Program, Dare Program, Drug
Free Community, Federal Drug Forfeiture, State
Drug Forfeiture, DUl Grant, EMA First Response,
Fire Prevention Fund, Historical Records Trust,
Homeland Security Grant Fund, Land Trust Reserve
Fund, Police Professional Development Grant,
Recording Fees Fund, Seat Belts Grant, Senate
Legislative Grant Fund, Speeding Grant Fund,
Bramley Grant Fund, Tobacco Grant Fund, Fire Haz
Mat Fund, Underage Drinking Fund, Swat Fund,
America the Beautiful Fund, Recycling Fund, and
School Restricted Funds.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major and Non-Major Funds (Continued)

Fund Brief Description
Non-Major:
Capital Project Funds: School Capital Reserve, and $4.5M Capital Project
Fund.
Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in
item b. below and the accrual basis of accounting.

in the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: :

(a) All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable
financial resources at the end of the period. The Town considers property taxes, State
PILOT revenue, Telephone Tax revenue and other miscellaneous revenue from the State of
Rhode Island as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Substantially all
other revenue of the governmental funds is recognized utilizing the modified accrual method
of accounting and as such is recognized when received. Except for grant funds which are
recognized as revenue when earned (reimbursement grants).

(b) The proprietary funds, governmental funds on the government-side statements, and pension
trust funds utilize "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial position and cash
flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities
are reported. Fund equity is classified as net assets.

(c) Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them. :

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. ‘

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable
and available". Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. Expenditures
(including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest which are reported when due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Accounting (Continued)

All proprietary funds, agency funds, and pension frust funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for licenses, fees,
goods, services or privileges provided, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary fund’s
principal operation. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges for services provided
in accordance with the fund's purpose. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the costs of
providing the services, including administration and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenue and
expense items not meeting these criteria are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. '

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
Cash

‘ Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. Cash equivalents include all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased. Substantially, all of
the Town'’s cash and cash equivalents are held in public deposit institutions. Pursuant to Section 35-
10-1 of the Rhode Island General Laws, as of October 1, 1991, public deposit institutions are required
to insure accounts which hold public funds in excess of the $100,000 which is guaranteed by FDIC.

State statutes and the Town charter authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, commercial paper, corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements.

Investments

The Town invests in various types of investments, which are stated at fair value in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31.

Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical
trends and the pericdic aging of accounts receivable. The allowance for uncoliectible accounts
receivable amounted to $3,733,510 at June 30, 2008. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
includes $3,100,000 for property taxes, $236,634 for tax lien property, $103,876 for municipal court
fines, and $293,000 for EMS rescue billings. Major receivable balances for the governmental
activities include property taxes (approximately 88%of the gross receivable balance).

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue
accruals such as property taxes, EMS billings, and grants and other similar intergovernmental
revenues since they are usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions
collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with modified
accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual
basis. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of ail revenues earned at year-end and not yet
received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the
periodic aging of accounts receivable.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each December 31
(lien date) and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of August 1 (levy date). Assessed values
are established by the Tax Assessor's Office and are currently calculated at 100% of the value.
Taxes are due in equal quarterly instaliments on August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1
following the levy date. Taxes due and unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to interest
at a rate of 12% per annum calculated on the unpaid portion of the total tax. An automatic lien is
placed on the taxpayer's property if payment has not been received by the tax due date. Property
taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. Property tax revenues are
recorded in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting in the fund financial statements.

Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid assets. Prepaids recorded in governmental type funds do not reflect current
appropriated resources and, thus, an equivalent portion of the fund balance is reserved.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements as discussed below.

Government-Wide Statements

in the government-wide financial statements, long-lived assets are accounted for as
capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if
actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated
fair value at the date of donation.

The Town does not currently have a formal Capital Asset capitalization policy.
However, -in fiscal 2008 the Town completed a valuation of its capital asset inventory
including infrastructure assets required by GASB Statement No. 34. As part of this process
the Town defined capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of one year
and a cost basis of $10,000 or more, except for land acquisitions which are recorded as
capital assets regardless of the cost.

The Town was required to implement the inclusion of the infrastructure assets
effective July 1, 2008. However, the Town did not complete the valuation process until fiscal
2008. Based upon completion of the capital asset valuation, the net assets of the
governmental activities were restated as of June 30, 2007 to properly reflect the infrastructure
assets and the capitalization policy. See Note 18 for details of the restatement.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded, as an allocated expense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net

Assets. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life using the straight-line method
of depreciation.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Land Improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements _ 20 to 50 years
Equipment, Furniture, and Fixtures 5 to 20 years
Vehicles 3 1o 20 years
Infrastructure 20 to 50 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations
are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for in the same manner as
in the government-wide statements.

Deferred Revenues

in the government-wide financial statements, deferred revenues represent funds received in
advance of being earned/owed or receivables which will be collected and included in revenues of
future fiscal years. In the General Fund, (of the fund financial statements), deferred revenues include
property tax receivables which were assessed on December 31, 2006 and prior and are not collected
within 60 days of June 30, 2008. Net deferred taxes included in the fund financial statements were
$2,346,487 at June 30, 2008. In addition, net deferred revenue in the fund financial statements
includes EMS billings and Municipal Court fines receivable which were not considered available at
June 30, 2008 totaling $330,517 and $49,806, respectively.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reported
as follows:

- Reciprocal interfund activities:

" Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and
interfund payables in borrower funds.

® Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as
expenditures or expenses in the purchasing fund.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

interfund Transactions (Continued)

- Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

. Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the
funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds transfers are reported after
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

. Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them.
Reimbursements are not displayed separately within the financial
statements.
Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

(a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(b) Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or

regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

(c) Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted"” or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt".

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination or death, certain employees are compensated for unused vacation and sick leave (subject
to certain limitations) at their current rates of pay. The amount recorded is the unused days earned at
the current rate of pay. For governmental activities the general fund is used {o satisfy this liability as it
becomes due, while each enterprise fund accounts for all its settlement of business-type liabilities for
compensated absences. Compensated absences are accrued at varying amounts based on the

collective bargaining unit contracts of the various unions,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $48,173,944 are as follows:

Bonds payable ... $32,838,950
Lease purchase obligationS.........ooovveereiiiiciieiicnen, 453,033
Accrued IBNR Claims.......coooviiiiiee i 378,000
Net Pension Obligation ... 3,567,523
Compensated absences ........ccoccvvereeieiconvecneenen. 10,836,438

TOtal.........coooee e $48,173.944

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of this $1,572,940 difference are as foliows:

Capital outiays ........c.oovveeeereie e $3,007,198
Depreciation expense................ veeererneeaenaeraeareen (1,434,258)
Netadjustment.....................cccooieiiiiiiniiieen, $1,572,940

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in governmental funds.” The details of this
$548,642 difference are as follows (before affect of allowance):

Deferred revenue - ending .......coococvveeeiceceincnnienenenen, $6,223,687
Deferred revenue — beginning ....c..cccceeveeenieniecnnens (5,675,045)
Net adjustment (decrease net asset).........ccccceeeene $ (548,642)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

A The following are recently issued governmental accounting standards which will be implemented by
the Town in future years.

v GASB Statement No. 45 ~ Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employees for Post-

employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for the Town’s fiscal year ending June
30, 2008. -

v GASB Statement No. 49 — Accounting for Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

v GASB Statement No. 51 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, effective
for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

v" GASB Statement No. 52 — Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments,
effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

v GASB Statement No. 53 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments,
effective for the Town'’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.

The impact of the above noted pronouncements on the Town’s financial statements has not been
determined.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 the Town implemented the following standards.
Implementation of these standards did not have a material effect on the Town’s financial statements.

v GASB Statement No. 48 — Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and
Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues.

v GASB Statement No. 50 — Pension Disclosures — an amendment of GASB Statements No.
25 and No. 27.

BUDGETARY PROCESS
(a) Adoption

In accordance with the North Providence Legislative Charter, the Town has formaily established
budgetary accounting control for its General Fund and the School Unrestricted Fund. The annual operating
budget for the General Fund is subject to adoption by the Town Council. The School Unrestricted Fund is
subject to an annual operating budget approved by the School Committee and adopted by the Town Council.
The annual operating budgets’' appropriation amounts are supported by revenue estimates and take into
account the elimination of accumulated deficits and the re-appropriation of accumulated surpluses to the
extent necessary. Appropriations, which are not expended lapse at year end. The Town’'s General Fund and
School Unrestricted Fund operating budgets are in conformance with generally accepted accounting
principals and the budget to actual presentations reflect the same basis of accounting.

Amendments to the operating budget that do not result in additional appropriations may be made
within departments by means of a transfer. The Mayor has authority to make such transfers within
departments. Any other transfers made outside the department level during the fiscal year require Town

Council approval. The level on which all budgeted funds may not legally exceed appropriations is at the
departmental level. :

(b) - General Fund

The following General Fund departmental expenditures exceeded appropriations: Legislative,
judicial, and general government - $474,492; Public Safety - $1,026,482; Other Expenditures - $128,439; and
Debt Service - $13,751. These over expenditures were offset by a positive variance of $783,493 in the Deficit
Reduction Elimination Program - to School Department. Overall total expenditures of the General Fund
(excluding transfers to School Unrestricted Fund) exceeded the amount budgeted by $1,340,948 while actual
revenue received was under the amount budgeted by $2,374,725.
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BUDGETARY PROCESS (Continued)

(b) General Fund (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 there were no differences between the revenue and
expenditures and other financing uses recorded on a GAAP basis (Exhibit B-2) to those recorded on a
budgetary basis (RSI-1). According the deficiency of revenues and other financing sources under
expenditures and other financing uses of ($2,932,180) is the same for GAAP and Budgetary purposes.

(c) Special Revenue Funds

As stated above the School Unrestricted Fund is the only other major governmental fund that has a
formally adopted budget. The actual revenues and expenditures of Special Revenue Funds included in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — School
Unrestricted Fund — (RSI - 2) are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting which differs from actual
revenues and expenditures recognized for the School Unrestricted Fund in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2). GAAP purposes require
the on behalf pension contributions by the State: of Rhode Island to be reported as both revenue and
expenditures in the funds statements.

A reconciliation of the School Unrestricted Fund revenues and expenditures and other financing
sources (uses), as report_ed on Exhibits B-2 and RSl - 2, is presented below:

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Total School Unrestricted revenues and other financing sources

TrOM EXRIDIE B-2. .............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt et ra e e n e ie e e $46,154,989
Adjustments: :
State on behalf pension contribution not budgeted...........ccc.cooviiiinniiis (1,964,838)

Total budgetary basis revenues and other financing sources
fromRSI-2..........cccooovvviviieinn. fetusceneeeas sttt st st b 44,190,151

Total School Unrestricted expenditures and other financing sources

From EXRIDIt B-2.............cc..coooiiieieiiiet ettt et $45,716,260
Adjustments:
State on behalf pension contribution not budgeted.........c.c.ccocovviniicnncn, (1,964,838)
Total budgetary bésis expenditures and other financing uses :
FrOM RSI = 2. .. ..ot sttt bt eeae e $43,751,422

Exhibit B-2 includes the $3.5M Capital Project Fund as a major governmental fund of the Town of
North Providence, Rhode Island for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The Town does not legally adopt a

budget for this fund. Accordingly, at June 30, 2008, there are no differences between GAAP and budgetary
reporting of this fund.
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The State of Rhode Island requires, that certain uninsured deposits be collateralized. Section 35-
10.1-7 of the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, dealing with the collateralization of public deposits,
requires that all time deposits with maturities of greater than 60 days and all deposits in institutions that do not
meet the minimum capital requirements of its Federal regulator must be collateralized.

Deposits

The carrying amount of the Town's cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2008 was $9,245,927
(including Fiduciary Funds) while the bank balance was $14,151,5650. Of the bank balance, $396,258 was
covered by federal depository insurance and $13,755,292 was uninsured. Approximately $332,000 and
$256,000 of the uninsured balance was held in money market accounts and accounts backed by federal
securities, respectively. The Town has entered into certain collateralization agreements however, the amount
of the uninsured balance, which was covered under collateralization agreements, was not available at June
30, 2008.

Investments

Investments of all idle funds shall be made through national banks or trust companies, providing that
the financial conditions and integrity of said institution or institutions are verifiable and can be monitored. The
investment of funds shall be in direct obligations of the United States Government and “money market
instruments” rated “A” or better. Investments in any one institution shall not exceed 5% of that institutions
capital and surplus as set forth in the institutions most recent audited financial statements. All investments
will be made as would be done by prudent persons of discretion and intelligence in such matters who are
seeking a reasonable rate of return and preservation of capital.

At June 30, 2008 the Town's investments were maintained solely in the Poiice Pension Trust Fund
and totaled $17,217,666 consisting of the following:

Fair Interest
: Value Rate Maturity Rating
Common StOCK ....ooovviiiiiiiieeee e $ 9,655,390 nfa n/a not rated
Insurance contracts — John Hancock ......... 7,562,276 n/a n/a not rated
Total ..o $17,217,666

Interest Rate Risk

The Town limits its exposure to fair value losses arising from changes in interest rates by structuring
_ the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby
avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity, and investing operating funds
primarily in shorter-term securities, money market funds, or similar investment pools. The investments noted

above do not specify a rate of return rather the rate of return is dependent on operating results and economic
conditions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

At June 30, 2008 the Town had a diversified portfolio and was not deemed to be concentrated in any

one investment category. Although virtually all of the investments are held in common stock and mutual
funds, these investments were in a wide range of companies and various industries enabling the Town to

minimize its risk.
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of financial institution failure, the Town's deposits
and/or investments may not be returned. The Town does not believe that it has a significant custodial credit
risk as substantially all investments securities are registered and held in the name of the Town.

PROPERTY TAXES

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the Town received $4,979,358 from the State of Rhode Island
as payment in accordance with legislation regarding the phase-out of motor vehicle tax. Under the law,
excise tax on motor vehicles and trailers were originally supposed to be phased out entirely over a seven-year
period commencing with the 1999-2000 fiscal year. Based on fiscal problems with the State budget over the
last few years the program has been reduced to a maximum exemption of $6,000 as of June 30, 2007 in
accordance with legislation passed as part of the State’s budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The
phase-out program freezes the tax rate at $41.95 which was the rate in fiscal year 1997-1998. The
exemption remained at $6,000 per vehicle for the 2007-2008 and 2008-20089 fiscal years.

The State of Rhode Island has also passed legislation to phase-out wholesale and retail inventory tax
over a ten-year period effective July 1, 1999. The phase-out of this tax was supposed to be supplemented
through an increase in General Revenue Sharing. The General Revenue Sharing was supposed to be
increased from the effective rate of 1% on June 30, 1998 to 4.7% on June 30, 2009. Based on fiscal
problems with the State budget over the last few years the program did not increase as scheduled in the
2006, 2007 or 2008 fiscal years. In fiscal 2004, 2.7% of total State tax revenues were earmarked for General
Revenue Sharing to cities and towns. In fiscal 2005 an additional $1 million was added tfo the total General
Revenue Sharing to cities and towns rather than the planned increase to 3% of the State tax revenues. In
fiscal 2006 General Revenue Sharing was increased to 3% of the State tax revenues. Revenue sharing was
frozen at the same dollar amount for the 2006-2007 and 2007-2008 fiscal years.

An automatic lien is placed on the taxpayer's property if payment has not been received by the due
date. Interest is charged on past due accounts at a rate of 12% per annum caiculated on the unpaid portion
of the total tax. The Town does not record interest on delinquent taxes until payment is received.

Net property taxes levied for the fiscal year 2008 were based on a net assessed value of
approximately $2,602,700,000 at December 31, 2006 and amounted to approximately $51,582,000.
Collections on this assessment recognized as revenue for the year ended June 30, 2008 amounted to
approximately $49,379,000, which represents approximately 95% of the total tax levy.

The Town recognizes property tax revenues in accordance with Section P70, "Property Taxes" of the
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards on the Fund statements. Unpaid
property taxes as of June 30, 2008 ($3,054,877) are recorded as a receivable, net of an allowance for
uncollectible property taxes of $3,100,000. Those net property taxes receivable which were not collected
within the 60 days immediately following June 30, 2008 are recorded as deferred revenue and amounted to
$2,346,487 at June 30, 2008. Property taxes recognized as revenue on the Fund statements for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2008 (due to their collection within the 60 days immediately following June 30, 2008)
amounted to $708,390
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2008 General Fund accounts receivable on the fund staiements consisted of the
following:

Fund
Recognized Statement
Receivable Net 60 Day Deferred
Balance Allowance Receivable Rule Collections Revenue
Property taxes ...................... $6,154,877 ($3,100,000) $3,054,877 $708,390 $2,346,487
Tax lien property.........cc....... 236,634 (236,634) 0 0 0
Municipal Court fees.............. 153,682 (103,876) 49,806 0 49,806
EMS Rescue billings............. 623,517 (293,000) 330,517 0 . 330,517
Other receivables.................. 154,757 ] 0 154,757 154,757 . 0
Total.....cccccovvveveiiiiiinicninieenn, $7.323.467 ($3,733.51Q) $3,589,957 $863,147 $2,726.810
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:
(As Restated)
Balances Retirements & - Balances
711107 Additions Disposals 6/30/08
Governmental Activity:
Nondepreciable Assets:
(-1 e SRR USRI $15,297,250 $ 201,000 $15.498,250
Total nondepreciable assets.......... 15,297,250 201,000 15,498,250
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and improvements................. 40,740,505 1,963,033 42,703,538
Land improvements .......ccccccoviniiennne 4,508,554 177,554 4 686,108
VERICIES ... 4,540,951 377,075 $ 230,923 4,687,103
Equipment, furniture and fixtures.......... 1,264,938 288,536 1,553,474
Infrastructure.........ocvveevevvieene e 2,039,921 2,039,921
Total depreciable assets .................. 53,094,869 2,806,198 230,923 55,670,144
Totalcost............cooeovviiveiiiieen 68,392,119 3,007,198 230,923 71,168,394
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements................. (16,281,877) (736,004) (17,017,881)
Land improvements .........ccccoveveeeiineennn (2,435,947) (164,919) (2,600,866)
VEhICIES .ovveiieeiec e (3,471,194) (318,846) (230,923) (3,559,117)
Equipment, furniture and fixtures........... (667,623) (115,781) (783,404)
INFrastrUCtUre.. ..o (606,535) (98,708) (705,243)
Total accumulated depreciation...... (23.463,176) (1,434,258) (230,923) (24.666.511)
Net capital assets...............c..oc.c..... $44.928,943 $1,572,940 3 0 $46.501.883
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balances Retirements & Balances
7/1/07 Additions Disposals 6/30/08
Business- type Activities: '
Machinery, equipment and furniture ..... $ 93,785 $93,795
Accumulated Depreciation:
Machinery, equipment and furniture ..... (93.,795) (93,795)
Net capital assets............................ $ 0 3 0 3 9] 3 0

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2008 was charged to. the following
functions/programs of the Town:

Governmental Activities:
Legislative, judicial, and administrative.......................... $ 14,261
Public safety........cccccvenee. et e e ————————————aa—aa—, 400,769
Public services/WOrks. .......coooovvvevevvieiieeeeeee e, 471,702
EdUCAION c.vvveire s 547 526
TOLAl............ooooiiiiiie e 1,434

TAX ANTICIPATION NOTE PAYABLE

At June 30, 2008 the Town had a tax anticipation note payable dated September 21, 2007 in the
amount of $2,500,000. The note is due in August 2008 with interest at an annual rate of 4.36%. The accrued
interest on this obligation is included in accrued liabilities in the government-wide Statements of Net Assets

and Activities. Interest is not accrued or expensed in the governmental funds until it is paid with current
measurable and available resources.

Balance Balance
711/2007 Additions Retirements 6/30/2008
$2.800.000 $2,500,000 $2.800,000 $2,500.000

Subsequent to June 30, 2008 the $2,500,000 tax anticipation note matured and a new obligation was
executed in the amount of $2,300,000 which is scheduled to mature in August 2009..

DUE FROM FEDERAL AND STATE GOVERNMENTS

Due from federal and state governments represent balances on contracts, awards, and grants as well
as for services provided and consisted of the following at June 30, 2008:

Due From
General Fund:
State of Rhode Island ...........c.ooovvveiv v $ 981,213
Other Governmental Funds:
State of Rhode Island .......................... e 493,687
School Cafeteria Fund:
State of Rhode [sland ..........cccoooiiiiieeeeec e 32,627
‘Total all fund types ...................coooevvveeiiiiceciecee $1.507,527
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9. INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund balances represent short-term advances from one fund (primarily the General Fund) to
another fund. The advances may represent balances resulting from operating advances or reimbursement for
expenditures paid by one fund on behalf of another fund. The composition of interfund balances at June 30,
2008 is as follows: .

Due From Due to
Governmental Funds: Other Funds Other Funds
Major Governmental Funds:
General FUNd ..o, $ 511,329 $6,491,816
School Unrestricted Fund ..........ccccoviiinnicnninenn 5,698,548 176,984
$3.5M Capital Project Fund .........cccceeeiiivicines 3,880 0
Non-major Governmental Funds:
Bullet Proof Vests ......ccccocee i, 0 550
Byrne Grant........ccooocvviniiiiieneec 0 2,985
Community Development Block Grants.................. 0 58,223
Dare Program ...ooooooeiiieiieier e 108 0
Drug Free Community Grant ........ccocveveveicenenennn 0 6,154
Federal Drug Forfeiture Fund ............cccevvveeeinnnne. 219,088 3,950
DUILGaNt ... e 0 ' 865
EMA First RESPONSE.......c.oooviviviiiiiieeececiee e 36,703 0
Fire Prevention Fund .........ocoeeeie e, 4,107 0
Historical Records Trust.........ccooiiiviiiiiiieeee, 22,936 0
Homeland Security Grant..........cc.cccooviiiieinnene, 0 90,000
Land Trust Reserve Fund ..., 198,839 0
Police Professional Development............c.......... 0 301
Recording Fees Fund .........coo i, 202,758 : 0
Bramley Grant Fund............cccoo i 24129 0
Underage Drinking Fund..........cc.cooevvieeiiiiennceen 0 : 1,547
SWat FUNG ...t 365 0]
Recycling Fund ... 6,897 0
School Restricted Fund............ccooviiiiiiii, 200,756 _ 354,347
School Capital Reserve Fund ........cccooveveveiiiienenns 21,738 0
Total governmentalfunds.............................. 7,152,251 7,187,722
Proprietary Funds:
Major Proprietary Funds: .
School Cafeteria Fund ........ccccooviiiiiniiiiren 35,471 0
Total Interfund Balances................ e ——————— $7.187,722 $7,187,722

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that fund balance be reserved for the amount due
from other funds which is not expected to be colliected within one year. As of June 30, 2008 management has not

reported a reservation of fund balance due to the belief that all interfund receivable balances will be collected during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

10.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(b) Additional Debt Information

State law limits the amount of bonded debt that a municipality can enter into without legislation. The
debt cap can not exceed 3% of the assessed value of taxable property of the Town. Accordingly, the
maximum bonded debt obligations that the Town of North Providence could enter into is approximately
$78,081,0000 which is 3% of the assessed value of property at December 31, 2006 ($2,602,700,000). The
Town's total bonded debt at June 30, 2008 was $32,838,950 which is less than the maximum amount
allowed. Also some of the Towns bonded debt may be exempt from the 3% calculation resulting in additional
amounts available within the cap. The total long-term debt of the Town ($48,173,944) represents
approximately 1.9% of the assessed value of the taxable property of the Town at June 30, 2008.

Interest accrued on debt obligations is reported as a liability and expense in the government-wide
financial statements. However, it is not reported in the Fund Statements until it is paid with measurabie and

_ available resources. Accrued interest expense recorded for the tax anticipation note obligation and long-term

debt obligations of the Governmental Activities was approximately $488,100 at June 30, 2008.

Compensated absences of $10,836,438 at June 30, 2008 represent vested sick, personal, and
vacation time earned by employees as of June 30, 2008 in accordance with their applicable employment

contracts. This balance is comprised of $8,101,876 for Town personnel and $2,734,562- for School
Department personnel.

) Debt Service Requirements

The Town's future debt service requirements relating to outstanding bond and lease purchase
obligations consist of the following and are planned to be raised through future property tax levies, fee
assessments, and state aid for school housing and library improvements:

Governmental Activities
Year(s) ending June 30:
Principal Interest Total

2009 . $ 2,992,954 $ 1,395,983 $ 4,388,937
2010 ooiiieinnn, 3,061,661 1,261,741 4,323,402
2011 o, 2,912,968 1,126,691 4,039,659
P10 1 2,784,850 998,411 3,783,261
2013 oo, 2,739,850 883,416 3,623,266
2014 =2018..... " 9,704,700 2,728,064 12,432,764
2019 -2023..... 7,235,000 1,423,628 8,658,628
2024 - 2028..... 1,960,000 149,839 2,109,839

Total.............. $33,391,983 39967773  $43,359.756

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

10.

11.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Advanced and Current Refundings and Defeased Debt

Proceeds of refunding bonds are deposited into an irrevocable escrow trust. The trust is held
by an independent trustee and is invested in obligations of the United States Government which
mature and bear interest in such amounts and at such times as will be sufficient to pay the principal
and interest of the defeased bonds upon maturity. Accordingly, the escrow trust fund, as well as the
defeased bonds, are not reflected in the financial statements of the Town of North Providence, Rhode

Island.

As of June 30, 2007, the in-substance defeased bonds outstanding included School
Improvement Bonds — 1996 Series A with a balance due of $11,065,000. These bonds were called in
July 2007 and accordingly, the Town no longer has any defeased bonds outstanding at June 30,

2008.

Schedule of long-term debt by purpose at June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Percent

68%
1%
7%
1%

23%

Amount
School and public improvement bonds...........cc.cccooevveeee. $32,938,950
Lease purchase obligations — Public Safety.................... 453,033
Net pension obligation — Public Safety — Police Plan ....... 3,667,523
IBNR ClaimMS ....ooiiiiiiiieeerecse et sea e .378,000
Compensated abSenCes....ccccovvevreeercvciniie e e, 10,836,438
Total ..o $48.173,944

100%

FUND EQUITY BALANCES (DEFICITS)

(a)

The fund equity balances have been classified to reflect the limitations and restrictions placed on the
respective funds as follows:

Fund Balances
Reservations of fund balances at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

General fund:
Reserved for prepaids..........cccovvviveiieeviiceeeeee e, $468,200
School Unrestricted Fund:
Reserved for professional development..........cc.ccooeeen. 57,843
To‘tal reservations of fund balances ........................ 26,04

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

11. FUND EQUITY BALANCES (DEFICITS) (Continued)
(b) Fund Deficits
The following individual funds had unreserved fund equity deficit balances at June 30, 2008:

Major Governmental Activities:

General FUNG . ..o $6,102,927

Management is in the process of developing a deficit reduction plan to eliminate the deficit in the
General Fund through future tax increases and various cost saving strategies.

The following individual funds had deficit net assets at June 30, 2008:

Business-Type Activities:
School Cafeteria .......cccvviviiini 447

Management will be conducting avreview of the School Cafeteria Fund to determine ways to
increase profitability through an increase in user fees and/or cost saving strategies.

The following individual funds had operating deficits for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008:

Major Governmental Activities:
General Fund.........cooviiiiii 2,932,1

$3.5M Capital Project Fund ........cccoooeiiiire 1.8 41

Business-Type Actfivities:
School Cafeteria ..o $94.966

Non-major Governmental Activities:
Special Revenue Funds

Cops That Care ..., % 426
Dare Great Grant.........cccoeevvveieeiieieeeeeee e 3,396
State Drug Forfeiture ........ccooveiiii e, 435
Fire Prevention Fund ............ccoccoiiiiii 7,644
Historical Records Trust .......ccccevvvviiviiiiiie e, 10,113
Homeland Security Grant ..........cc...occen. e 3,485
Police Professional Development Grant...................... 7,149
Senate Legislative Grant ..........ccoooeeiieeeiiii 61
Speeding Grant FUNd ... 1
Capital Project Funds: :

$4.5M Capital Project FUN.........ccoovevieveiieeceeen 3,970

Total deficits non-major governmental activities.. $36.680

The deficits incurred in the Special Revenue and Capital Project Funds were all covered by
available fund balances. The revenue for these funds was realized in prior years while the
expenditures were incurred during fiscal 2008.

(CONTINUED)
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JUNE 30, 2008

12,

13.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The principal purpose of interfund transfers is to provide a financing source to various funds that may
not have the ability to cover all operating costs with revenue generated by the fund. The composition of
interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

School Non-major
Unrestricted Governmental $3.5M Capital Total
Transfer Out Fund Funds Project Fund Transfer Out
General Fund ..........cccoovevviennnnne. $43,739,660 $ 19,316 $43,758,976
Non-major Governmental Funds. 312,601 12,601
Total transferin..................... $43,739.660 $19.316 $12,601 = $43.771.577

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
(a) General Municipal Employees’ Pension Plan

‘The Town of North Providence participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System
(MERS)of the State of Rhode Island (“System”), an agent multiple employer defined benefit plan. The
System includes a normal plan for general employees and both a normal and optional plan for fire personnel.
All full-time Town and non-certified School Department general employees participate in the System.

The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 2008. was
approximately $7,054,800 and the Town wide payroll was approximately $45,600,000.

Plan Description

The MERS was established under section one of chapter 2784 of the Rhode Island Public Laws of
1951 and placed under the management of the Retirement Board for the purpose of providing retirement
allowances to employees of municipalities, housing authorities, water and sewer districts, and municipal
police and fire persons that have elected to participate. ‘

The plan generally provides retirement benefits equal to 2 percent of a member’s final average salary
multiplied by the number of years of total service up to a maximum benefit of 75 percent of final average
salary. Final average salary is the three highest consecutive years of earned salary exclusive of overtime,
bonuses or severance pay. Joint and survivor options are available as well as the Service Retirement
Allowance (SRA) Plus option that provides for the payment of a larger benefit before the attainment of age
sixty-two and a reduced amount thereafter. The reduced amount.is equal to the benefit before age sixty-two,
including cost of living increases, minus the member's estimated social security benefit payable at age sixty-
two. Such benefits are available to members at least age 58 with 10 years of service or after 30 years
regardiess of age. An optional cost of living provision may be elected. The general employees of the Town of
North Providence have not elected the cost of living provision. The plan also provides nonservice-connected
disability benefits after 5 years of service; service-connected disability pensions with no minimum service

requirement, vested benefits after 10 years of service; survivor's benefits, and certain lump sum death
benefits.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

13.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(a) General Municipal Employees’ Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions Required and Contributions Made

Town of North Providence general employees are required by State Statute to contribute 6 percent of
their annual earnings until the maximum benefit (75 percent of final average salary) is accrued. The Town is
required to contribute based on an actuarially computed amount and as provided by State Statute for each
participating municipality. The actuarial method used is the entry age normal cost with part of each
municipality's unfunded actuarial liability funded over a fixed amortization period and the balance funded over
the projected future payroll of active members. Due to large fluctuations in the contribution rates of certain
municipalities, the plan has adopted a procedure which would aliow a unit the option of paying a smoothed
contribution rate. The smoothed contribution rate equals the previous fiscal year's contribution rate plus the
greater of 2 percent or one eighth of the increase in contribution rate plus the cost of any benefit
improvements. The actuarially determined contribution amount for the Town was determined as described
above and was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2005.

The annual required contribution for the Town which equals the annual pension cost for the year
ended June 30, 2008 was $-0- for general employees. This contribution represents 0% of covered payroll.
General municipal employees were required to contribute approximately $424,000. This contribution
represents 6% of covered payroll for the period July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008.

There were no current year changes in actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, or actuarial funding
method that would significantly affect the contribution requirement. Significant actuarial assumptions and
other actuarial information are presented in the following required supplemental information.

Trend Information ‘
Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal ' Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2006 $0 100% $0
2007 $0 100% $0
2008 $0 100% . $0

Trend information showing the System’s progress (See RSI - 3)in accumulating sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island’'s Empioyee Retirement System’s June 30,
2006 annual financial report, which may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode
Island Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Island. This report is the most recent report
available from the State, who administers the Plan.

Funded Status of Plan

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress
of the General Municipal Employees’ Pension Plan with a valuation date of June 30, 2006 which is the most
recent report available from the State who administers this plan.

- Actuarial value of assets - $23,388,174 - Actuarial accrued liability - $20,839,143
- Funding Excess - $2,549,031 - Funded Ratio - 112.2%

- Annual covered payroll - $6,826,293

- Funding Excess as percentage of covered payroll — 37.3%

(CONTINUED)
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13.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

(b) Municipal Fire Pension Plan

The Town of North Providence participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the
State of Rhode Island ("System”), an agent multiple employer defined benefit plan. The System includes a
normal plan for general employees and both a normal and optional plan for police and firemen. Ali full-time
fire employees participate in the System.

The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 2008 was
approximately $5,500,000 and the Town wide payroil was approximately $45,600,000.

Plan Description

The following eligibility and benefit provisions are established by State Statute. The System provides
the following retirement benefits {o employees at or after age 55 with 10 years of service or after 25 years of
service with no restriction on age. Members may retire receive reduced benefit if they are at least age 50 and
have at least 20 years of service. Fire personnel may elect for an optional cost-of-living provision. However,
the Town of North Providence has not opted for the optional cost-of-living provision under MERS. The Town
of North Providence has elected the optional 20-year retirement provision for its firefighters and accordingly
an additional 1% contribution is required by all participating employees (normal employee contribution rate
7% plus option provision 1% - total employee contribution 8%).

Monthly retirement benefits are equal to 2.5% of the member's monthly final average compensation
for each year of service, up to 30 years (75% of final average compensation maximum). Final average
compensation is the three highest consecutive years of earned salary exclusive of overtime, bonuses or
severance pay. The plan also provides non-occupational disability benefits after 5 years of service,
occupational disability benefits with no minimum service requirement, survivors’ benefits, and certain lump
sum death benefits. Employees are vested in their retirement benefits on completion of 10 years of service.

Retirees’ benefits are adjusted annually by 3 percent, not compounded, to allow for increases in the cost of
living.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

Fire personnel are required by State Statute to contribute 8 percent until the maximum benefit (75
percent of final average salary) is accrued. The Town is required to contribute based on an actuarially
computed amount and as provided by State Statute for each participating municipality. The actuarial method
used is the entry age normal cost with part of each municipality’s unfunded actuarial liability funded over a
fixed amortization period and the balance funded over the projected future payroll of active members. Due to
large fluctuations in the contribution rates of certain municipalities, the plan has adopted a procedure which
would allow a unit the option of paying a smoothed contribution rate. The smoothed contribution rate equals
the previous fiscal year's contribution rate plus the greater of 2 percent or one eighth of the increase in
contribution rate plus the cost of any benefit improvements. The actuarially determined contribution amount

for the Town was determined as described above and was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2005.

(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

13.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(b) Municipal Fire Pension Plan (Continued)

Contributions Required and Contributions Made (Continued)

The annual required contribution for the Town which equals the annual pensidn cost for the year
ended June 30, 2008 was approximately $630,000. This contribution represents 11.51% of covered payroll

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Employees were required to contribute approximately $436,800 or
8% of the covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

There were no current year changes in actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, or actuarial funding
method that would significantly affect the contribution requirements. Significant actuarial assumptions and
other actuarial information are presented in the following required supplemental information.

Trend Information

Municipal Fire Pension Plan:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) - Contributed Obligation
2006 $601,000 100% $0
2007 $523,000 100% 30
2008 $630,000 100% 30

Trend information showing the System’s progress (see RSl — 3) in accumulating sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island’'s Employee Retirement System's June 30,
2006 annual financial report, which may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode

Island Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Island. This report is the most recent report
available from the State, who administers the Plan.

Funded Status of Plan

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress
of the Municipal Fire Pension Plans with a valuation date of June 30, 2008, which is the most recent report

" available from the State who administers this plan.

- Actuarial value of assets - $22,133,914 - Actuarial accrued liability - $24,207,502
- Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) - $2,073,588
- Funded Ratio - 91.4% - Annual covered payroll - $5,212,740

- UAAL as percentage of payroll — 39.8%

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

13.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

(c) Teacher's Pension Plan

All North Providence School Department certified school personnel participate in the Employees’
Retirement System (ERS)of the State of Rhode Island (“System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit plan. The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 2008 was
approximately $22,490,000, which consisted of $596,000 for employees charged to federal programs and
$21,894,000 for all other certified employees. The School Department's total payroll was approximately
$26,000,000. The Town wide payroll for the year ended June 30, 2008 was approximately $45,600,000.

Plan Description

The ERS was established under section two of chapter 2334 of the Rhode Island Public Laws of 1951
and placed under the management of the Retirement Board for the purpose of providing retirement
allowances for employees of the State of Rhode Island under the provisions of chapters 8 to 10, inclusive, or
title 36, and public school teachers under the provisions of chapters 15 to 17, inclusive, of title 16 of the

Rhode Island General Laws. The plan provides a two tier benefit structure referred to as schedules A and B
as follows:

Schedule A Benefits: Schedule A benefits are available to members who possess 10 years or more of
contributory service on or before July 1, 2005. Schedule A provides unreduced benefits of 1.7% of earnings
for each of the first ten years of service; 1.9% for each of the next ten years of service; 3.0% per year for each
of the next fourteen years; and 2% for the 35" year. Joint and survivor options are available as well as the
Service Retirement Allowance (SRA) Plus option that provides for the payment of a larger benefit before the
attainment of age 62 and a reduced amount thereafter. The reduced amount is equal to the benefit before
age 62, including cost-of-living increases, minus the member's estimated social security benefit payable at
age 62. The maximum benefit is 80% of final average earnings after 35 years of service. Such benefits are
available to members at least age 60 with 10 years of service, or after 28 years at any age. On the third
January after retirement, a cost-of-living increase of 3% (compounded annually) is provided independent of
actual changes in the consumer price index. The plan also provides nonservice-connected disability benefits
after five years of service, service connected disability pensions with no minimum service requirements;
vested benefits after ten years of service; survivor's benefits for service connected death; and certain lump
sum death benefits.

Schedule B Benefits: Schedule B benefits are provided to members who have less than 10 years of
contributory service on or before July 1, 2005. For Schedule B members, the plan provides unreduced
benefits of 1.6% of earnings for each of the first ten years of service; 1.8% for each of the next ten years;
2.0% per year for years 21 through 25 inclusive; 2.25% per year for years 26 through 30 inclusive; 2.5% per
year for years 31 through 37 inclusive and 2.25% for the 38" year. Only single life, and joint and survivor
options are available. The maximum benefit is 756% of his or her average highest three years of
compensation after 38 years of service. Such benefits are available to members at least age 65 with 10 years
of service, or after 29 years of service and age 59. Actuarially reduced retirement is available at age 55 and
20 years of service, the benefit is reduced actuarially for each month that the age of the member is less than
sixty-five years. On the month following the third anniversary date of the retirement, and on the month
following the anniversary date of each succeeding year, a cost of living increase of 3% (compounded
annually) or the percentage of increase in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) as
published by the United States Department of Labor Statistics, determined as of September 30 of the prior
calendar year, whichever is less is provided for Schedule B members.

The ERS plan also provides a survivor benefit to public schoo! teachers via a “Teachers Survivor
Benefits Fund” in lieu of Social Security. The details of the survivor death benefits and other death benefits
are provided in the financial section of the Annual Financial Report of the Employees’ Retirement System of
Rhode Island for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 which can be found at www.ersri.org. '

(CONTINUED)
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13.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(c) Teacher's Pension Plan (Continued)
Funding Policy

Rhode Island general laws set the contribution rates for participating plan employees at 9.5% of
salary. Annual contributions by both employers and the State on behalf of those employees are determined
by actuaries and assessed as a percentage of participants’ payroll. The School Department was required to
contribute 13.04%, 11.62%, and 9.72% for all fuli-time employees for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 20086,
respectively. The required contributions include (a) normal costs; (b) payments to amortize the unfunded
frozen actuarial accrued liability as of June 30, 1999 over 30 years; and (c) interest on the unfunded frozen
actuarial liability. Normal cost is determined using the entry age normal cost method with frozen initial liability.
A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the standardized measure of the pension
benefit obligation and these assumptions are summarized below:

(a) Mortality — 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Tables

(b) Investment return — 8.25 percent, compounded annually.

(c) Salary increase - Salaries will increase at a rate of 4.5 - 17.0 percent, compounded
annually.

(d) Retirement age - Teachers are assumed to retire at the later of age 61 or completion
of the service requirements.

(e) Cost of living adjustments — Schedule A Members - 3.0 percent compounded

annually. Schedule B Members ~ 2.5%.

As prescribed by Rhode Island general law, the State pays the entire portion of the annual required
contribution attributable to the costs of contributions deferred by the State in prior years plus 40% of
contributions assessed to employers on payroli not reimbursable through Federal programs. For fiscal year
2008, actuarial required contributions were 22.01% of the participant’s salary. This resulted in contribution
rates paid by the State on behalf of the School Department of 8.97% of non-federally reimbursable payrolis
totaling $1,964,838 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The Schoo! Department contributed the
remaining 13.04% of the required 22.01%. The Town’s contribution for certified employees paid under federal
grants was 22.01%.

The School Department does not have any investments or related party investments with the State
Plan. The School Department’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2006 represented approximately

3.9% percent of total contributions required of all participating entities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006
(latest available information).

The amounts contributed to the plan were as follows:

Town’s Portion of

Employee Annual Required Percentage
Years Ending June 30, (approximate) Contributions Contributed
. 2008 . $2,136,500 $2,854,900 100%
2007 $2,047,245 $2,555,654 100%
2006 : $2,041,000 $2,088,318 v 100%
(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(c) Teacher's Pension FPlan (Continued)

In accordance with GASB 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers,” the School Department has determined that there are no assets or liabilities relating to the
funding requirements of the plan.

Trend information showing the System'’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island's Employee Retirement System’s June 30, 2006 annual
financial report, which may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode lIsland
Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Sireet, Providence, Rhode Island. This report is the most recent report
available from the State, who administers the Plan. The report can also be found at www.ersri.org.

(d) Police Pension Plan

All North Providence Police Officers participate in a single-employer retirement plan which was
established in accordance with the North Providence Town Charter. The plan is considered part of the
Town's financial reporting entity and is included as a pension trust fund (Fiduciary Fund) in the annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The payroll for employees covered by the plan for the
year ended June 30, 2008 was approximately $3,940,000 while the Town wide payroll for the year ended
June 30, 2008 was approximately $45,600,000.

Plan Description

The plan became effective July 1, 1978. All police officers working 1000 hours or more in a plan year
and contributing to the plan are eligible for retirement benefits. Participants are eligible for vested benefits
after 10 years of service. The plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Participants in the plan are eligible to retire at the completion of 20 years of service. Normal retirement
benefit is 2.5% of average compensation for each year of credited service, up to 20 years, plus 2% of average
compensation for each year of credited service in excess of 20 years with a maximum of 75% of average
compensation.  Benefit is payable as an unreduced 67.5% Joint and Survivor Annuity. Average
compensation is defined as the average of the 3 highest non-consecutive years during the last 10 years of
base annual pay including longevity pay and excluding overtime.

Participants are eligible for non-occupational disability benefits after 7 years of service. Occupational
disability benefits are provided to all employees immediately. Non-occupational disability benefits are 50% of
average compensation as of the disability date while occupational disability benefits are equal to 66.67% of
average compensation as of the date of disability.

Pre-Retirement Spouse's Death Benefit is immediate. The spouseis entitled to 40% of final average
salary plus 10% for dependent children, subject to a maximum of 50%. If no surviving spouse, 15% of final
average salary for each dependent subject to maximum of 45% and ceasing when the last child has attained
histher 18" birthday. The benefit is payable immediately following the death of the participant.

The plan provides benefits prior and subsequent to retirement. The death benefit prior to retirement
is $400 times the number of years of service, subject to a minimum of $2,000 and a maximum of $8,000, but
no less than the employee accumulation. If death occurs after termination of employment, only the employee
accumulation is payable. The death benefit subsequent to retirement is determines as above reduced by %
for each year subsequent to retirement, subject to a minimum of $2,000 or the employee accumulation less
annuity payments received. If employment is terminated prior to his/her retirement date, only the employee
accumulation less payments received is payable.

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(d) Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Plan Description (Continued)

Cost of living increases — Participants retiring between July 1, 1986 and prior to July 1, 2004, with 20
years of service, a lump sum payment will be made on each January 1. The payment is lnmally 3% of the
annual retirement allowance, increasing each year by 1% to a maximum of 12%. For participants retiring
after July 1, 2004 and prior to July 1, 2008, with 20 years of service, a lump sum payment will be made on
each January 1 beginning January 1 2007. The payment is 3% of the initial annual retirement allowance,
not compounded, for a period of 15 years. Those retiring after July 1, 2004 but prior to January 1, 2006 shall
receive the COLA set forth above until January 1, 2007 at which time the 3% COLA will commence. Those
partncxpants retiring after July 1, 2006, with 20 years of service will receive a lump sum payment on each
January 1% following the date of retirement and each January thereafter for 25 years. The payment is 3% per
year of the original benefit, not compounded. At the end of 25 years, the COLA will not increase, but the final
benefit will continue to be paid thereafter.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

Under the provisions of the plan, employees are required to contribute 8% of their compensation
effective January 1, 2007. Prior to January 1, 2007 the employee’'s contributions were 7% of their
compensation. The plan actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2006 was used to determine the Town’s annual
required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009. The Town’s annual required

contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was $1,525,120 while actual contributions made were
$840,985.

The July 1, 2006 plan actuarial valuation has determined the annual required contribution for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 to be $1,525,120 or 39.3% of covered payroll.

The Town's annual pension cost (APC) and net pension benefit obligation (NPO) for the Police
Pension Fund for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC) ..., $1,525,120
Interest on net pension obligation...........cccooevic e 214,128
Adjustment to ARC ..o e (284,230)
Annual pension Cost (APC) .. ... 1,455,018
Town contributions Made.........coociiiii e 840,985
Increase in net pension obligation .........c.ccccoveiiiec 614,033
Net pension benefit obligation, June 30, 2007 .........cccccivieieiiiicnnnnn. 2,953,490
Net pension benefit obligation, June 30, 2007 ............................... $ 3,567,523
Three-Year Trend Information
Fiscal Annual Percentage : Net
Year Town : Pension Cost of APC Pension
Ending Contribution - (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/2008 $ 840,985 $1,455,018 57.8% 33,567,523
6/30/2007 3 967,426 $1,153,098 83.9% $2,953,490
6/30/2006 - $1,150,123 $1,153,212 99.7% 32,767,818

The net pension obligation of $3,567,523 at June 30, 2008 is included as a long-term obligation in the
government-wide statement of net assets.

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(d) Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

The following are the actuarial methods and assumptions used in the Police Pension Plan Annual
Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2006 dated May 8, 2007 (latest available). The amounts noted in parenthesis
represent the assumptions used in the July 1, 2005 valuation. The schedule of funding progress is presented
in the Required Supplementary Information Section of these financial statements as RSI-3. The unfunded
actuarial accrued liability at July 1, 2006 has been calculated at approximately $9,031,000.

Investment Return — 7.25% (prior year 8.0%)

Salary Increases — 4.0% annually (prior year 5.5%)

Healthy Mortality — RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table (1984 Group Annuity Table)

Disabled Mortality — RP — 2000 Disabled Table (1994 Group Annuity Tabie)

Retirements — 25% of active members are assumed to retire on completion of 20 years of
service; 5% retire at each age thereafter; 100% are assumed to have retired by age 55.
(Prior year 100% were assumed to retire at the later of age 50 and the completion of 25 years
of service, but no later than age 65).

Turnover — 25% of the Sarason T-1 Tabie

Disability — The United Auto Workers Table. 50% of disabilities are assumed to be duty
related. (Prior year — four times the disability rates given in United Auto Workers 1955 Table.
All disabilities are assumed to be duty related.)

Survivors — 90% of men and 75% of women are assumed to be married, with wives four
years younger than husbands. 100% of active members are assumed to have one
dependent child.

Plan Expenses - Administrative expenses are estimated using prior year's actual expenses
increased by 3%, rounded to the nearest $1,000. (Prior year — administrative expenses were
estimated using the average of the prior three years adjusted using the salary increzse
assumption less 1%, rounded to the nearest $1,000).

A complete copy of the. Town of North Providence, Rhode island Police Pension Plan Annual
Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2006 for Fiscal Year 2007-2008 (latest available) can be obtained by

contacting Maria G. Vallee, Acting Finance Director, Town of North Providence, 2000 Smith Street, North
Providence, Rl 02911.

Funded Status of Plan

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress
of the Police Pension Plans with a valuation date of July 1, 2006, which is the most recent report available
from the Actuary hired by the Town to conduct a valuation.

Police Pension Plan:

- Actuarial value of assets - $18,763,757 - Actuarial accrued liability - $27,794,462
- Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) - $9,030,705
- Funded Ratio -~ 67.5% - Annual covered payroll - $3,881,748

- UAAL as percentage of payroll — 232.6%

(CONTINUED)
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14.

15.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Town offers its municipal employees a deferred compensation plan established in accordance
with the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (g). The Town has not reported these plans on its
financial statements in accordance with GASB No. 32, “Accounting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457
Deferred Compensation Plans”, since the Town does not have fiduciary responsibility for these plans. The
Plans, available to all municipal employees, permit the deferral of a portion of their salary. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

The plan is administered by an outside agency and the Town is only liable for remitting employee
withholdings.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH CARE MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Town of North Providence is exposed to various risks related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; workers’ compensation claims; and natural disasters for which
the Town carries commercial insurance. Premiums are charged as expenditures as incurred. Settled claims
resulting from these risks have .not created additional premiums to the Town in any of the past four fiscal
years and it is not anticipated that additional premiums will result from current year activity. There have been
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from prior years.

The Town has a cost-plus financing plan in order to finance the costs of its health insurance benefits.
Under this cost-pius plan the Town pays for the actual cost of covered health care services plus a fee to the
provider for the administration of the program. The Town remains liable under the plan for individual claims
up to $150,000 per claim. In order to avoid catastrophic losses, the Town “reinsures” the program by
purchasing insurance known as “stop-loss insurance.” Two types of “stop-loss insurance” are purchased; 1)
individual stop-loss and, 2) aggregate stop-loss, with both provided through the Plan Administrator. These

policies are retrospectively rated and premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost experience of the
Plan Administrator.

Approximate changes in the balances of claims liabilities (health, dental, and workers compensation)
as of and during the year ended June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR), June 30, 2007 ...........cccceeevernnne $ 625,000
Approximate amount of incurred Claims ......c.covevriiii e 8,993,273
Paid claims including amount in accounts payable at June 30, 2008 ........ (9,240,273)
Estimated IBNR Claims outstanding at June 30,2008........................ $ 378000

The estimated IBNR claims liability represents claims which occurred prior to June 30, 2008 but
which were not reported until July and August 2008. These claims are recorded as a long-term obligation in
the Governmental Activities in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets as they are not expected to be
paid with current measurable and available resources at June 30, 2008. The IBNR claims outstanding at

June 30, 2008 are comprised of approximately $187,000 and $191,000 related to Town and School
employees, respectively.

At June 30, 2008 the Town of North Providence has a deposit with the Plan Administrator totaling
approximately $468,000. This deposit was required as part of the contract with the Plan Administrator to
ensure reimbursement of claims is made in a timely manner. This deposit has been classified as a prepaid

expense and as such has been included in reservation of fund balance in the governmental activities of the
Fund Statements.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008 the Town and School Department became members in a collaborative
with other local municipalities in an effort to reduce costs of health, dental and workers compensation costs.

(CONTINUED)
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16.

17.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Liabilities for legal cases and other claims against governmental funds are recorded in the
governmental funds when the ultimate liability can be estimated and such cases are expected to be settled
with available expendable financial resources.

The Town, including the School Department has received grants from various federal and state
agencies for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits
could lead to request for reimbursement to the grantor agencies for expenditures disaliowed under the terms
of the grant. Town officials are of the opinion that such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

During the ordinary course of its operations, the Town is a party to various claims, other legal actions
and complaints. These various legal actions include disputes in property valuations and torts for which the
Town has been named as a defendant. In the opinion of the Town’s management and legal counsel they do
not anticipate any of the claims to have a materiail financial impact, or at this time legal counsel has been
unable to assess the liability, if any, on the part of the Town. Accordingly, no liability has been reported in the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2008.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 13, the Town provides post employment benefits
(health insurance) in accordance with union contracts. These benefits, by employee group, are described
below. :

Town Hall Employees, Police Civilians and Public Service Employees

‘Members of this group are eligible for post employment benefits if they retire on or after they have
attained the age of fifty-eight and have served at least twenty years in the Town at the time of retirement.

Eligibility for members of the group stems from taking normal retirement on or after July 1, 1988. A
normal retirement shall be any of the following:

(1) Retirement after a minimum of twenty years of service and/or purchased military time.
(2) Retirement after a minimum of ten years of service at a minimum of fifty —five years of age.

The Town'’s obligations for these groups shall continue until either the retiree or spouse receive health
care coverage from another employer or the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare or another federally
subsidized health care program. If the health care program provided by another employer of the retiree or
his/her spouse ceases to be provided at any time before the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare or another
federally subsidized health care program, then the Town's obligations to pay for health care coverage shall
resume. For Police personnel, if health care coverage offered by the new employer provides a lesser level of
benefits than the Town plan, the Town shall pay to the health care provider the additional premium to provide
benefits comparable to the Town plan.

The expenditure for post retirement health care benefits is recognized on a pay as you go basis.
During the year ended June 30, 2008, expenditures of approximately $1,214,000 were recognized for post
retirement health care benefits paid for approximately 81 Town retirees under this plan.

The North Providence School Department pays the cost of health insurance benefits for all eligible
employees in accordance with the terms of the union contracts. The School Department funds post
employment benefits on a pay as you go basis. - During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 the School
Department incurred expenditures of approximately $290,000 for 45 retirees under this plan.

(CONTINUED)
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18. RESTATEMENT

Net assets of the Government-wide Financial Statements at June 30, 2007 have been restated to
reflect the implementation of GASB Statement #34 relative to infrastructure assets and the impact of adopting
a capitalization threshold of $10,000 for all capital assets. The Town of North Providence was scheduled to
implement the infrastructure component of GASB Statement #34 effective July 1, 2006 however, the Town did
not conduct a fiscal valuation of the capital assets until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

The following reflects the restatement of the net assets of the Governmental Activities in the
Government-Wide financial statements as of June 30, 2007. This restatement does not affect the
governmentai fund statements due to the fact that the fund statements record capltal acquisitions as
expenditures when acquired.

The auditor's report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 presented an adverse opinion
on the Governmental Activities of the Government-Wide Statements due to the lack of information and non
compliance with GASB Statement #34 relative to capital asset reporting.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Net assets at June 30, 2007, as originally stated ............................ $ 9,837,415

Reduction in capital assets resulting from implementation of
GASB Statement #34 for infrastructure assets, and valuation

of all capital assets with a threshold of$10,000.........cccoocvnveicnenen (11,512.8086)
Net assets (deficit) at June 30, 2007, as restated......................... ($_1.675.391)
Capital assets as originally reported at June 30, 2007 ................... 356,441,749
Reduction in capital assets resulting valuation ..............c..cccocceci 11,512,806)
Capital assets at June 30, 2007, as restated .................c............. $44,928,943

The impact of the above noted prior period adjustment on the change in net assets for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007 is unknown and it is impracticable for management to determine.

(CONCLUDED)
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TOWN OF TH PROVIDE DE |

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Original & Final Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes:
Current taxes $ 49,966,465 $ 49,378,963 (587,502)
Prior taxes 2,000,000 1,878,046 (121,954)
Total taxes current and prior 51,966,465 51,257,009 (709,456)
Interest on delinquent accounts 575,000 433,347 (141,653)
Total property taxes 52,541,465 51,690,356 (851,109)
State & Federal Aid:
General state aid 2,404,365 2,032,742 (371,623)
School construction aid 1,179,976 1,222,772 42,796
State motor vehicle phase-out 5,213,295 4,879,358 (233,937)
Telephone tax 320,185 284,579 (35,606)
State PILOT 533,146 513,660 (19,486)
State aid to education 13,299,762 13,052,777 (246,985)
Medicaid reimbursement (Education Department) 595,000 315,331 (279,669)
State community relief fund 1,070,479 1,120,853 50,374
Total state aid - Town 24,616,208 23,522,072 (1,094,136)
Licenses, fees and rents:
Pool & fitness center/recreation 257,000 209,924 (47,076)
Data processing services 14,000 14,000 -
Rental of Town properties 132,500 162,881 30,381
Total licenses, fees and rents 403,500 386,805 (16,695)
Investment income - short term 145,000 77,612 (67,388)
Departmental revenues:
Building inspection revenue 500,000 412,177 (87,823)
Town clerk receipts 690,000 486,504 (203,496)
Police department revenue 35,000 - (35,000)
Municipal court revenue 250,000 111,412 (138,588)
Other departmental revenue 500 455 (45)
Total departmental revenues 1,475,500 1,010,548 (464,952)
Miscellaneous revenues:
Administration grants 65,000 - (65,000)
Housing authority -in lieu of taxes 16,500 18,897 2,397
Sale of surpius property - 5,160 5,150
EMS services and other miscellaneous receipts 1,500,000 1,677,008 177,008
Total miscellaneous revenues 1,581,500 1,701,055 119,555
Total Revenues 80,763,173 78,388,448 (2,374,725)
(CONTINUED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
56
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Original & Final Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:

Legislative, judicial and general administrative: _
Administration 287,796 298,815 (11,019)
Town council ’ 94,793 92,650 2,143
Town clerk 203,213 221,903 (18,690)
Legal department 166,134 259,383 (93,249)
Public Buildings 660,980 890,237 (229,257)
Board of canvassers 131,782 123,037 8,755
Human resources 39,320 40,260 (940)
Zoning board of review 8,050 5,613 2,437
Computer 36,050 79,942 (43,892)
Planning department /economic developement 168,324 211,117 (42,793)
Other (departments) 148,000 195,987 (47,987)

Total general government - 1,944,452 2,418,944 (474,492)
Department of Finance:
Finance Director/Town Treasurer 264,535 227,144 37,391
Tax collector 235,323 281,215 (45,892)
Tax assessor 217,943 172,010 45,933
Purchasing 57,954 57,312 642
Auditing financial records 26,000 27,200 (1,200)
Total department of finance 801,755 764,881 36,874
Public Safety:
Fire Department 7,712,489 8,684,156 (971,867)
Police Department 6,026,204 6,060,094 (33,890)
Communication Division 44 100 39,009 5,091
Division of inspections 200,447 197,116 . 3,331
Emergency management 5,700 19,384 (13,684)
Fire hydrants 145,000 160,663 (15,663)
Total public safety 14,133,940 15,160,422 (1,026,482)
Public Services/Works: _
Street lights 415,000 416,343 (1,343)
Beautification 4,500 3,658 842
Department of public works 1,791,693 1,850,243 (58,550)
Recreation department 605,182 541,869 63,313
Environmental protection 2,004,000 1,783,563 220,437
Local welfare . 10,574 10,494 80
Total public services 4,830,949 4,606,170 224779
Grants & Contributions: ’
Grants to organizations 102,005 73,653 28,352
Grant to senior center 520,389 508,160 12,229
Grant to library 702,070 702,088 . {18)
Total grants and contributions 1,324,464 1,283,901 40,563
(CONTINUED)
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Other expenditures:
Insurance
Fringe benefits
Various miscellaneous - contingencies
Total other expenditures

Debt Service:
Bond and note principal
Bond and note interest
Total debt service

Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to School Unrestricted Fund
Deficit reduction elimination program - to School Department
Total other financing uses

Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources under
expenditures and other financing uses

Variance with

Original & Final Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
624,000 597,240 26,760
8,226,000 8,282,795 (56,795)
50,000 148,404 (98,404)
8,900,000 9,028,439 (128,439)
2,699,850 2,699,850 -
1,604,610 1,618,361 (13,751)
4,304,460 4,318,211 (13,751)
36,240,020 37,580,968 (1,340,948)
44,523,153 40,807,480 (3,715,673)
(43,439,660) (43,439,660) . -
(1,083,493) (300,000) 783,493
(44,523,153) (43,739,660) 783,493
$ - $  (2,932,180) (2,932,180)
(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

RSI-2

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
School Unrestricted Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues:
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
before other financing sources (uses)

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfer from Town of North Providence
Deficit reduction transfer from Town of North Providence

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses

Variance with

Original & Final Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)

3 - 3 450,491 3 450,491

- 450,491 450,491
25,536,003 26,355,827 (819,824)
9,951,480 10,221,596 (270,116)
6,768,710 6,002,446 766,264
857,804 838,457 19,347
134,080 113,361 20,729
191,573 219,735 (28,162)
43,439,660 43,751,422 (311,762)
(43.439,660) (43,300,831) 138,729
43,439,660 43,439,660 0
0 300,000 300,000
43,439,660 43,739,660 300,000
$ - $ 438,729 $ 438,729

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT,
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes. The following
special revenue funds are reported as nonmajor governmental funds.

Bullet Proof Vest

Child Pass Safety Grant

Cops that Care

Dare Program

Federal Drug Forfeiture

DUI Grant

Fire Prevention Fund
Homeland Security Grant Fund
Police Professional Development
Seat Belts Grant

Speeding Grant Fund

Tobacco Grant Fund
Underage Drinking Fund
America the Beautiful Fund
School Restricted Funds

Byrne Grant

Community Development Block Grant
Dare Great Program

Drug Free Community

State Drug Forfeiture

EMA First Response
Historical Records Trust

Land Trust Reserve Fund
Recording Fees Fund

Senate Legislative Grant Fund
Bramley Grant Fund

Fire Haz Mat Fund

Swat Fund

Recycling Fund

The School Restricted Funds noted above is comprised of the following restricted
grant funds administered by the North Providence School Department:

OPEB Reserve

Title V

Project IDEA

Title 11

eRate

Literacy

Substance Abuse Task Force
CSR High School

CSR Ricci School

Use of Property

Title |

Title IV

Preschool

Title 1

Perkins

Ri Learn & Serve Grant
Office Max Kids

Project Vault

Beatrice Ward Auditorium
Preschool Tuition

(CONTINUED)







TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds. Funding sources include debt
proceeds, intergovernmental sources, third party contributions and
General Fund operating transfers. The following capital project funds are
reported as nonmajor governmental funds.

School Capital Reserve - This fund is used to account for the capital project activity
maintained by the North Providence School Department.

$4.5M Capital Project Fund — This fund is used to account for bond proceeds and other
revenue which is to be used for capital acquisition and improvements to the senior center,
Centredale revitalization, and recreation projects.

(CONCLUDED)
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TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE

- AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governments.
The following funds are reported in this section:

Unclaimed Estates — To account for unclaimed estates that are in probate.

Seized Property — To account for property that was Obtained by the Town during police

investigations and is to be remitted to the State or Federal Government or returned to the
original owner.

Low Cost Spay/Neuter — To provide assistance to low income families for pet spay or
neutering. ' '

Animal Care Donations — To provide financial support to low income families whose pets are
in need of miscellaneous care.

Realty Tax Transfer — To collect fees on real estate property transfers. This account is used
to hold the portion of the fees that are due to the State of Rhode Island.

Student Activities Fund — To account for funds held in various school programs. At June 30,
2008 the North Providence School Department was administering approximately 32 separate
accounts for student activity funds.

Food Pantry Fund — To account for funds received which are to be used to support low
income families seeking assistance.




TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
Year ended June 30, 2008

Unclaimed Estates

ASSETS:
Cash
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Seized Property:

ASSETS:
Cash
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Low Cost Spay/Neuter:

ASSETS:
Cash
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Animal Care Donations:

ASSETS:
Cash
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
3 41,046 1,228 4,611 $ 37,663
3 41,046 1,228 4,611 3 37,663
41,046 1,228 4,611 37,663
41,046 1,228 4,611 37,663
3 4,681 3 17,978 10,598 3 12,062
$ 4,681 $ 17,979 10,598 $ 12,062
4,681 17,979 10,598 12,062
4,681 17,979 10,598 12,062
352 § 370 b 60 662
352 370 60 662
352 370 60 b 662
352 370 60 g 662
3 1,830 2,684 2,252 2,262
$ 1,830 2,684 2,252 2,262
1830 % 2,684 2252 $ 2262
1,830 $ 2,684 2,252 3 2,262

(CONTINUED)




EXHIBIT 3 {Continued)
TOWN OF NORTH PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
Year ended June 30, 2008

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Realty Tax Transfer Account:
ASSETS:
Cash $ 70,196 $ 508,801 3 525,621 $ 53,376
TOTAL ASSETS 3 70,196 3 508,801 $ 525,621 $ 53,376
LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others 3 38,607 3 29,357 $ 38,607 $ 29,357
Due to State of Rhode Island 31,589 479,444 487,014 24,019
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 70,196 $ 508,801 3 525,621 $ 53,376
Student Activities Fund
ASSETS:
Cash ) $ 401,395 $ 643,116 3 653,729 $ 390,782
TOTAL ASSETS 3 401,395 $ 643,116 $ 653,729 $ 390,782
LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others 3 401,385 g 643,116 g 653,729 390,782
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 401,395 3 643,116 3 653,729 5 390,782
Food Pantry Fund
ASSETS:
Cash 3 - $ 2,650 $ 1,791 $ 859
TOTAL ASSETS 3 - $ 2,650 3 1,791 $ 859
LIABILITIES:
Deposits held in custody for others $ - $ 2,650 3 1,791 $ 859
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 - $ 2,650 3 1,791 $ 859
Total - All Agency Funds
ASSETS:
Cash $ 519,500 $ 1,176,828 3 1,198,662 $ 497,666
TOTAL ASSETS $ 519,500 $ 1,176,828 $ 1,198,662 $ 497,666
LIABILITIES:
Due to State of Rhode Island 3 31,589 $ 479,444 $ 487,014 3 24,019
Deposits held in custody for others 487,911 697,384 711,648 473,647
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 519,500 $ 1,176,828 $ 1,198,662 $ 497,666
(CONCLUDED)
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